

City of Sebastopol

Incorporated 1902 Planning Department 7120 Bodega Avenue Sebastopol, CA 95472

www.ci.sebastopol.ca.us

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING OF: February 23, 2021

UNAPPROVED DRAFT MINUTES

PLANNING COMMISSION CITY OF SEBASTOPOL MINUTES OF February 23, 2021

PLANNING COMMISSION:

The notice of the meeting was posted on February 18, 2021.

1. CALL TO ORDER: Chair Fernandez called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.

2. ROLL CALL:

Present:	Chair Fernandez, Vice Chair Fritz, and Commissioners Kelley, Haug, Lindenbusch, Douch, and Oetinger
Absent:	None
Staff:	Kari Svanstrom, Planning Director

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES - None

4. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC ON ITEMS NOT ON AGENDA:

Huck Hensley commented:

Thanked the Commission for doing the tough work and asking the hard questions when they had the opportunity to review the Benedetti Car Wash project.

Director Svanstrom indicated that no written comments had been received.

Hearing nothing further, Chair Fernandez closed public comment.

5. STATEMENTS OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST: None.

6. REGULAR AGENDA:

A. PETALUMA SEBASTOPOL TRAIL PRESENTATION – A presentation from Regional Parks on the Petaluma – Sebastopol Trail. The Commission will be asked to recommend the City Council adopt a Resolution of Support for this project.

Director Svanstrom provided some background and introduced Steve Ehret from Sonoma County Regional Parks.

Steve Ehret and Ken Tam presented.

Luke Lindenbusch, Commissioner

Thank you so much for the presentation, I am hugely supportive of this. My question has to do with some of the connection of this trail to Rohnert Park/Cotati. I looked through the longer document, and I know it was outside of the area of scope for the project, but I was curious how this trail might connect to the bike networks in those two cities.

Ken Tam, Sonoma County Regional Parks

Bellevue Creek Trail connects to Stony Point Road.

Steve Ehret, Sonoma County Regional Parks

There are several different trails coming in on the western side of Rohnert Park that connect over to this trail. Mr. Tam just mentioned the Bellevue Creek Trail as being one of them. Hinebaugh is another. There is a planned Laguna bikeway. There is one more than I am forgetting.

Ken Tam, Sonoma County Regional Parks

Colgan Creek Trail gets pretty close.

Steve Ehret, Sonoma County Regional Parks

We can send you a map so you can see those connections for yourself. We are active on the areas in the unincorporated county, and we have been coordinating with the City of Rohnert Park on some of those connections so we are optimistic that we will be able to tie that together. Once you get into Rohnert Park, because of the Smart Trail, you are then able to slide north or south and connect.

Luke Lindenbusch, Commissioner

I think that absolutely answers my question. I was just thinking about the importance of connecting to Rohnert Park and Cotati as it is kind of in between Sebastopol and Petaluma. Also, as you mentioned, the connection to the forthcoming Smart Trail as well. Thank you.

Evert Fernandez, Chair

How far away is the Colgan Creek Trail from completion?

Steve Ehret, Sonoma County Regional Parks

We have built one major phase of it on the edge of Santa Rosa. We have a western extension of it in the plan and we have done some preliminary analysis of it, but we have not taken steps to build another section. We have also worked with Santa Rosa on their connecting pieces inside the city. They are working on connecting those. It goes clear on over to Taylor Mountain Regional Park on the east side of 101 and we have not figured out a way to have a separated trail to get over 101, but the area can be a kind of bookend and that is feathering right into the proposed Kiwanis Springs Community Park, which is adjacent to our county park, so we are working on both sides. We are not advancing further the western part of Colgan at the moment, but we intend to.

Chair Fernandez opened public comment.

Lynn Deedler

I would like to ask a question before I make my comment. I know the area pretty well, yet I had a hard time following the maps that were presented. Does the trail follow 116 all the way to Stoney Point Road, and where does it diverge from following 116?

Evert Fernandez, Chair

Can you please proceed with your comments now and then we can come back to getting an answer to your questions?

Lynn Deedler

I think I am among many in the public that are not very enthusiastic about this trail. We had originally started out to make a trail going down the railroad that connected Sebastopol and Petaluma, and it would have made one of the most beautiful trails in the county. Instead, we have moved over to going down 116 and Stony Point Road and not using any of the rural areas at all. We are going to have one of the most undesirable trails in the county. I was in attendance of nearly all the meetings that went into this and there was a very organized group that wanted this trail going down the railroad put down. It was organized by one person who did a great, professional job of rounding up people and convincing them that awful things would happen if the trail went near them. They had a professional website that said it looked like the Joe Rodota trail and the worst part, it said there would be crime, graffiti, human waste, and homeless people camping in their backyard, and on and on. They talked to most of the owners and people in the neighborhood at least twice in some situations. The negative response that was seen in these public meetings was well orchestrated, and just totally over ran the enthusiasm from the people that wanted to see this trail going down the railroad. My experience in talking to people along the trail was that many of those homeowners originally, and this is before this campaign, were very welcoming of the trail idea. I hope that the County takes the long view and says, what do we really want? It might take a generation, but the difference is so stark, and it would be so much more desirable to recover that rail trail and work toward that, it will be used more than, or as much as any other trail. I do not think that the trail that is being proposed will be used much at all. It will also cost about three times as much. There are a lot of negatives about it.

Director Svanstrom indicated that no written comments on this item had been received.

Hearing nothing further, Chair Fernandez closed public comment.

Steve Ehret, Sonoma County Regional Parks

Appreciate the question. The answer is, yes, it is parallel to 116 all the way down to Stony Point Road and then parallel to Stony Point Road. There is a vast amount of background. I will simply summarize that, if the County thought there was any chance of feasibility of the railroad, that would be the preferred alternative, but we do not, for a whole bunch of reasons, we are not going to condemn people's homes, we are not going to take people's backyards, we just are not, we do not own the land. We believe that the trail will be as successful as the very similar condition north of town, by Andy's Market, very similar. Well used, highly trafficked, well loved, we think it will be similarly well loved. In fact, we are also working on a similar situation in Sonoma Valley, they also lost their railroad right-ofway decades and decades ago, just like here. The bikeway we are working on for Sonoma Valley is parallel to Highway 12. We wish it were further out, but too late, we are decades and decades too late. It will still be a wonderful community asset and it will actually be far cheaper than trying to take millions and millions of dollars of people's private property.

Vice Chair Fritz made a motion in support of recommending that the Council approve a Resolution of support for this proposed trail, I think it will be a great asset. As has been mentioned, the City has been working with Regional Parks for decades and this is a good opportunity for us to continue to do that.

Commissioner Lindenbusch seconded the motion.

Chair Fernandez asked for discussion of the motion, and additional comments or questions from the Commission.

Evert Fernandez, Chair

I think it is a worthy cause. Of course, we would have rather had the railroad, but it is better than not having any trail. Appreciate all of the work that has been done. We will make the best of it given the situations we have.

VOTE:

 AYES: Chair Fernandez, Vice Chair Fritz, and Commissioners Kelley, Lindenbusch, Douch, Haug, and Oetinger
NOES: None
ABSTAIN: None
ABSENT: None

Kari Svanstrom, Planning Director

The motion passed unanimously (7-0). This will be scheduled for a presentation to the Council in the coming weeks and we will certainly let you know when that is going to be in case any of you want to join that meeting as well. Thank you, Mr. Ehret and Mr. Tam.

Steve Ehret, Sonoma County Regional Parks

Our hope is to start with the section coming right out of Sebastopol down Bloomfield, that is our hope for the first phase. I think that would offer immediate benefit for a large portion of the community.

Evert Fernandez, Chair

Thank you. Looking forward to it.

Kari Svanstrom, Planning Director

I will note that when I originally went through this with Mr. Ehret in one of our meetings, I noticed that the Sebastopol portion of it, which was not done when the plan was passed along Petaluma Avenue is now completed, so the city portion is already done. It is wonderful news to hear that you would be starting with the city for those that live on the south side of town.

B. PLANNING COMMISSION COMPOSITION – Discuss and provide a recommendation on any changes to the Planning Commission's composition to City Council for their consideration.

Director Svanstrom presented the staff report.

The Commission asked clarifying questions of Director Svanstrom.

Chair Fernandez opened public comment.

There were none.

Director Svanstrom noted that no written comment had been received for this item.

Chair Fernandez closed public comment.

The Commission discussed as follows:

Evert Fernandez, Chair

I have been on the Planning Commission for 10 years. Vice Chair Fritz and Commissioner Kelley have also had a lot of experience, so I'd like to start discussions and then move to Vice Chair Fritz and Commissioner Kelley to start off. I do not think that the alternate position has been needed. In my experience on this Commission, I can only recall one time where we had a quorum issue and that was due to a miscommunication. Other than that, we have not really had that kind of a problem. As far as how to handle that transition, that is up to Council. Since it is a one-time thing, if they are going to eliminate the alternate position, and we have an open position available, it would seem to make since to move the alternate to that open position. Regarding the number of commissioners, I have gone back and forth on that. Five would be less than, and more efficient, in some ways. I know the reason for seven commissioners is because we want more people commenting, but there is the ability for someone who does not agree with the Commission to petition for the City Council to review it. Oftentimes, the Commission is not making policy, it is making recommendations to the City Council. On the other hand, with having seven commissioners, one thing that I like is the fact that it gives more opportunity to talk to more commissioners regarding the Brown Act. If we had five commissioners, a commissioner could only talk to one other commissioner, it is very limited on that. With seven commissioners, up to three people can be on a committee, or you can talk to two other individuals. I definitely think that we should be very specific in indicating that the majority of the Planning Commission, at least four commissioners, maybe five commissioners, should be city residents. The decisions that are made impact our residents. If a project were before the Commission and someone in a neighborhood was concerned about impacts from a proposed project, I would think they would take issue with the decision makers being from out of town and making decisions on things that may not directly affect them. I think it is good to have one commissioner from the 95472-zip code but outside city limits. That could increase to two commissioners, I do not have strong feelings on that. One commissioner seems good, at least. I think the boundary should encompass the entire 95472-zip code, versus a specific number of miles outside city limits, because I do not think that the difference would mean that somebody is or is not more in tune with, and more active in the city. Their distance from city limits does not necessarily determine how dedicated, supportive, or involved someone is. I think eligibility should be spelled out in the event that a member of the Commission relocates.

My concern is that, if left up to interpretation, Council could decide to make an exception for someone who is favored and then not do the same for somebody else. It is too arbitrary. It should be specific. If a commissioner moves, they have to give up their seat, or if they move outside city limits, if there is a 95472-seat available, they could move into that seat, rather than having Council decide on how to deal with that at the time.

Paul Fritz, Vice Chair

If the Council's goal is to increase participation in meetings, or giving people opportunity, I do not guite see why allowing one more seat in the outside city limits category does that. It gives one more person a more direct vote, but in terms of increasing overall participation in City business, I do not really see how that will do that. If we want more people to come to meetings, we may need to change the time when meetings are held or advertise them better. I do not know exactly how to get more people to want to come to a Planning Commission meeting, but I do not think that allowing one other person outside the city limits does that. If that is the intention of that, I am not particularly in favor of that because I do not see the connection. Three- and four-hour long Planning Commission meetings discourage people from coming to Planning Commission meetings. There have certainly been meetings where we have two or three items on an agenda, and someone wants to speak on the second item, and we do not get to it until 9:30 and they have left because they did not want to wait two and a half hours to comment. That seems like a bigger issue in terms of participation. With seven and eight commissioners, there have been plenty of meetings that have big, contentious issues on the agenda when we had all eight commissioners present and it takes a long time to get through everyone's comments and have a dialogue. That is coming around to saying that I am in favor of decreasing the size altogether. I am certainly in favor of getting rid of the alternate position. I have never understood, as Chair Fernandez mentioned, the need for an alternate. I have never been on the Commission where we had a quorum issue. It seems like it was a solution looking for a problem that never really happened. At this point, since we do have a vacancy, I would certainly be in favor of moving Commissioner Haug from the alternate position to a full position. I would also be in favor of allowing, through attrition, the Commission to eventually get down to five commissioners. I know that some on the Council have said in the past that they want more voices heard, and that is great, but the Council has five members, and they make a lot of bigger decisions that impact the city. If we want broader decision making, maybe we should increase the number of people on our Council to seven. I know that the Council already has very long meetings. I think the Commission would have adequate conversation with just five commissioners. I am not trying to get rid of anyone on the Commission, I think we all work well together, and I think this is a good Commission. But, over time, I would favor allowing the number to go down to five. As you can see from the staff report, a lot of communities have only five commissioners, and some bigger communities have only five commissioners and it seems to work out fine for them. To the idea of allowing another person outside city limits, Sebastopol already seems to be pretty generous in that fact. Cloverdale allows a two-mile distance, Sonoma allows someone from Sonoma Valley, but most cities do not allow someone outside city limits, and we seem to be the only one that allows business owners that live outside city limits. We already allow some representation from outside city limits; we have jurisdictional boundaries and they do mean something. We all participate in other communities. We all go to Santa Rosa; we go to Petaluma. I spend a lot of time in Santa Rosa shopping, visiting friends, and doing business, but I do not get to sit on any commissions or boards in Santa Rosa because I am not a resident of Santa Rosa. With regards to a commissioner moving outside city limits, I am of the opinion that, if we had the current situation where we allow a business owner, or one other person who lives outside city limits, if that person who moved outside city limits as a business owner, I would be fine with them remaining on the Commission since that is allowed. If the outside city limits seat is available, then I

would be fine with them moving into that seat. I guess I would say that I am not particularly in favor of changing that for any reason. I would support making a change to say the majority of the Commission has to live within the city limits. I do not have a super strong feeling about that because Council appoints people to the Commission, they have control over that process, and they could make sure that that is the case. I would support codifying that in the ordinance is that is the consensus of the Commission. I am more in favor of setting a distance limit from the city. I looked online at the zip code map and the 95472 area is huge. It goes from Bloomfield, Valley Ford Road, up to the Russian River and Monte Rio, all the way to Occidental, and down Bohemian Highway, it is a very large area. I would be in favor of setting some kind of limit, could be two miles, I do not know exactly what it should be, it is all somewhat arbitrary. I would be more included to have an arbitrary set distance around the whole perimeter of our city limits. I do not know exactly what that should look like. I would be curious what that looks like. I do not really know how far two miles outside of town goes, I do not know what that would include. I would be curious to see some different options for that before making a final decision.

Linda Kelley, Planning Commissioner

I tend to agree with Chair Fernandez and Vice Chair Fritz on most of the items. I think going down to five commissioners would be fine. In terms of the alternate, I was never for it, but it was not our decision. To eliminate the alternate position, since we have an opening on the Commission, the Council should appoint that commissioner to the permanent position, we should not just move the alternate automatically into that position. I am fine with our business owner being an outside resident, I never really thought about it. It could be all six or seven commissioners so I would recommend one business owner that lives outside of town. If somebody on the Commission moves, I do not think they would have to resign unless they were a business owner, or there was an opening in the 95472 position. How we do see the size of people that would be eligible, I know our sphere of influence would probably be too small, but I definitely think it is a good idea to rein that in. Ukiah is looking at the same thing right now and their sphere of influence goes from ridge line to ridge line, including Ukiah city limits. It is actually a very big sphere of influence; I would not recommend going that big. I would support going down to five commissioners through attrition as well. I think it would be more efficient. The issue with the alternate is, it does not seem fair to have them participate in the discussion and then not be able to vote on an item as the alternate if the full Commission is in attendance.

Zac Douch, Commissioner

I agree with what has been said. The alternate is an easy one. I agree with Commissioner Kelley's thoughts that the City Council could nominate the existing alternate into a full position. That would seem appropriate to me. I do not disagree that the Commission could consist of five members and that it could be effective with five. The only reasons I can think to keep it at seven is with the number of subcommittees and tangent tasks, it can be useful to have some additional members to take on those roles. Other than that, I do not think that going down to five commissioners would be problematic, but seven commissioners do have its benefits with regard to that and the Brown Act issue that Chair Fernandez mentioned earlier. I am in favor of the 95472 boundaries. Mostly because it exists and because wherever I go in the 95472 boundary, and people I know who live there, identify with Sebastopol as the hub, even if they live close to Occidental, Forestville, or out toward the river. I think that most of those folks think of Sebastopol as that hub. I feel that there is a connection, almost historically, through the agricultural community that spreads from this town. With seven members, I think we should have a majority of commissioners be residents and the ordinance should probably be adjusted to reflect that. If we have seven commissioners, having as many as two being from outside

city limits seems reasonable but I do think that at least one of those should have some other connection to the city, whether they own property inside city limits or are employed full time in the city limits. I think it is important to have some form of connection because I think it helps when commissioners are invested in the decisions that are being made. If, for instance, someone owns commercial property or a rental in town, I do not think they should be excluded completely. Having some flexibility with two members for that seems appropriate. The other reason to have two members that are from the broader community is simply because it is hard to fill the positions. How many times have we been through the nomination process to wind up with one candidate for two positions or more? That fact could also be an argument to go down to five commissioners as well. It cuts both ways. As to commissioners having to leave if circumstances change, I am sympathetic with the comments that Vice Chair Fritz made, but I would also say that one way to think about it is if a person is in the first half of their term (4 years) and their situation changes, maybe they should resign their position. Equally, if they are into the second half of their tenure, it may be perfectly reasonable to let them serve that out. Things do not change rapidly on the Commission; we do not move from issue to issue. Every week with these, we tend to have issues that span a few months at a time. It is circumstantial, of course, but there is often business where having that familiarity can be useful. It takes new commissioners a good while to get comfortable in the role, to get up to speed on the many issues, and to understand historical actions and how things have been thought out in the past.

Luke Lindenbusch, Commissioner

I will start with the alternate position elimination. I think we are in unanimous agreement on that, and I agree with Commissioner Kelley that we should let the City Council fill that seat. I would probably be more in favor of acclamation given Commissioner Haug's service if it were an uncontested seat. I do not know if Beau Anderson lives outside of 95472 and those sorts of factors. I think it is best to go back to Council on that. In regard to moving to a five-member commission, I agree as I have seen a lot of commissions and bodies that work with five people very well, that could be very effective. I am a little concerned given that we have no term expiring at the end of this year. If commissioners decide to stay on for multiple terms, and we are moving very slowly whittling down to five members, I could see that taking up to a decade to occur. I would not want to see a Planning Commission with no new members for many years. I think that would be counterproductive, and ultimately kind of anti-democratic. I think a situation like that, even if it sounds really good, could keep the Commission more stagnant than we would want it to be. I had an idea, a new and kind of more radical way of thinking about boundaries, instead of going by zip code. When I was looking at the Cloverdale circumstance, I was not thinking about it as two miles from the outline of the city limits as I eventually found out was the case. I thought what it would be like if we made a radius around a central point in town, and the first one I checked was the intersection of Main Street and Bodega Avenue. I think many of us could agree that that is the gravitational center of town and thought how far is it until you hit the nearest jurisdiction, which in this case is the populated areas of the City of Santa Rosa. It turns out to be exactly three miles from point A to point B. I wanted to know what it would look like if we drew a threemile circle around that point and looked at some of the points along that radius. On the north end you have Summerfield Waldorf toward the northeast, toward the northwest you have Hallberg Butterfly Gardens and Graton, to the west you have Bill's Farm Basket, to the south you have Garlock Tree Farm on Pleasant Hill Road, and again, to the southeast you have the southwest Santa Rosa border at Wright Road and Ludwig Avenue. That should give you a landmark sense of what that kind of radius might look like. I agree with Councilmember Slayter's comments that the 95472-zip code is not necessarily comprehensive, in part because you can apply for a commission if you live in Occidental but not if you live off of Occidental Road. I think that is something that can be fixed by a

radial overlay, whether that is in combination with the 95472-zip code, or not, I think we can leave that up to the Council. I am also concerned if we stick with the 95472-zip code as a metric, that we would be excluding the 95444-zip code, which is a little whole in the middle of the 95472-zip code that is there just because Graton has a post office. I do not see why someone who lives in Forestville, Occidental, or Freestone should be able to apply to be on the Commission, but somebody from Graton could not. I am not completely wedded to using 95472 as a metric, but that is an inconsistency, it should be 95472 and 95444, if we are going to be dealing with that bigger West County definition. I think there is a lot of room for flexibility here. It could be that we have a really hard and fast rule that up to three commissioners living outside city limits with no more than one living outside of the three-mile radius, or something like that, just to make sure that we do not have a bunch of business owners from outside city limits on the Commission, but if we have one or two, that is okay. Getting to the larger issue, I do not think that having five or seven commissioners comes down to public participation at all, I think it comes down to the fact that Council has a hard time recruiting for these roles pretty consistently. Some cycles there are a lot of people who apply, and some cycles we have to extend the deadline. I think we should give them the flexibility to be able to fill these positions, allow our commissions and committees to do the work, while making it as fair as possible.

Evert Fernandez, Chair

Thank you for bringing up those in the 95444-zip code, that is a good point.

Kathy Oetinger, Commissioner

I think seven is a good number for the Commission. I think that because it allows us to have a broad range of professionals and experiences. I think that we should leave it up to the Council to reappoint the position when there is a vacancy. I am okay with retiring the alternate. I appreciate being on the Planning Commission. For years, people asked me, and they did not realize I was not in the city. I am in the sphere of influence. The city wraps around me and I have been involved in politics, planning, and policy for many years so I can understand people living outside the city and having that same experience that I have had living in Sebastopol. I fully know I do not live in the city, but I am certainly involved in it, and I know other people who are too, and they live outside the city. I was surprised when the position came up, but I was grateful that it did. It offers the opportunity to be more inclusive in the community and to draw more people in to the Planning Commission, making decisions for how to grow this small town, which is kind of a unique situation. I think it is important that we are inclusive. Based on its consultant's report, it seems the Council is trying to be inclusive. I am in support of having up to two people outside the city as long as the majority is within the city. I like the idea of the radius versus a range contiguous to the outside border. I often think of the center of town being Jewell and Bodega rather than downtown because it really is more central. I think of Ives Park and the firehouse as being the center of town, physically, and I would support a two-mile radius outside from that. I think that would be a good indication of people being close to town and being part of it on a regular basis, knowing that we have businesspeople that could be farther out.

Kate Haug, Commissioner

This is interesting since I am the alternate. I have enjoyed being the alternate a lot. I think it offers an opportunity for someone like myself, who is very new to this, to learn without having the responsibilities of a vote. I am sympathetic to what everyone is saying about the time of the meetings. For me, being the alternate is not a frustrating position, it is an opportunity to learn. I tend to enjoy hearing other people's thoughts and opinions. I appreciate a seven-member Commission because I think it brings a lot of different perspectives. I have watched, within our own Commission meetings, people change their

minds by hearing what our people had to say, which I thought was remarkable. I really appreciate that about this Commission, because I feel in this particular group that commissioners really do listen and consider what each other has to say and bring to the table. For instance, Commissioner Lindenbusch's idea about the radius. I appreciate that idea, I think it is a good idea, and I would not have thought of it myself. I appreciate all the different mindshare and knowledge that we create as a community. In that way, I think there are pros in having more people of the Commission. If you have a good selection, you actually create more knowledge, new ideas, and new opportunity. The con is the time of the meetings, the time that it takes to generate that knowledge. In terms of the alternate position, I only have my perspective of it, I am not a commissioner, I am an alternate so I cannot really speak from a commissioner's perspective on that. I do think that the majority of commissioners should be residents. I am open to flexibility, either with two seats out and with out of them having a steak in the town, being a business owner, a full-time employee, or a commercial property owner. That should be clarified in the ordinance to some degree because I think that will be helpful in the future.

Evert Fernandez, Chair

It sounds like the recommendation of eliminating the alternate position is close to unanimous. I think everyone is of the opinion of specifying in the ordinance of having a majority, maybe even specifying a number, four or five of the seven, to be a resident from within city limits. I believe the majority indicated support for consideration of reducing the number of commissioners down to five through attrition. If that happens, we should consider the ramifications and revisit topics such as what is considered a majority, how many can live outside city limits, etc. I think I heard the majority also indicate consideration of a radius. What I heard was a business owner or an outside resident, two would be the maximum based on those issues. The situation with full-time employees may be too volatile. If somebody is a business owner, they are going to be around if they own a property, if somebody is an employee, they could be employed for two months and then leave, and then we would have a situation that needs to be dealt with so I do not think that is something that I would recommend. I am not clear on our consensus on the filling of that extra position from the alternate.

Linda Kelley, Planning Commissioner

I would like to revise my comment from earlier. I talked about a business owner being a non-resident, but I am not in favor of adding two more outside residents. I think it's a little too much. I do not agree that it should just be a majority, I think one outside, and then one business owner who is a non-resident, I could be okay with it being a commercial property owner. I do not know how I feel about a full-time employee since there are so few full-time jobs, as we know. That might be a little bit of a far stretch. For some planning commissions you have to have experience in planning or design, or something like that. I think we are pretty generous. I am a nurse, what do I know about planning except as it relates to care? I do not know if I agree that it has to be an experienced person. There are some jurisdictions that are pretty strict in that way. In terms of the number five, the County has five planning commissioners, and they seem to get their work done, although they do meet a lot.

Kari Svanstrom, Planning Director summarized the discussion so far:

There were some areas where the Commission was split a little bit. What I heard from everybody, though, was to go down to seven members, by eliminating the alternate, if not fewer, but certainly to go down to seven members. A majority should always be residents and that should be clarified in the ordinance. There were a number of different things that I heard on the topic of commissioners residing outside city limits, such as one business owner and one outside residents. If a business owner also resides in town, like Vice Chair

Fritz, that commissioner would be considered as a resident not as a business owner in terms of categories. I think it would be good to get more discussion on the distance outside of the city issue because the comments seemed to be evolving. I think a little more discussion on that, now that everyone has heard each other's thoughts might be helpful to see if a consensus can be reached.

Zac Douch, Commissioner

Commissioner Lindenbusch's points were well made, and well taken. He came up with three miles and had a good set of landmarks that demonstrate that that distance would be appropriate if measured from the intersection of Bodega Avenue and Main Street. If we are doing a radial, I very much like his suggestion. I also agree with Commissioner Lindenbusch on 95444, I had sort of forgotten about that little pocket there, but he is absolutely right on it being important to include that if we are going to go by zip code. Generally, I am okay with the geographical area being larger. If we are only really looking at two members of the seven, I think it is going to self-regulate to a certain extent. I cannot image that we are going to have someone from way outside, if they are interested in being on the Commission, presumably they are because they have some significant interest. I am not convinced that the zip code is not reasonable, but I am certainly not wedded to that. I very much like Commissioner Lindenbusch's thinking in regard to radial if we go that route.

Evert Fernandez, Chair

As far as the majority, I would like to be specific as to say that five need to be residents if we are at seven right now. As many of two from outside could be permitted. They full Commission could be residents, but at least five of them should be. I would like to be specific if that is the consensus.

Luke Lindenbusch, Commissioner

I would suggest moving it to four because we have two members currently who live outside of city limits. If we add one more who applied who was a business owner, I think giving the Council that small amount of flexibility might be helpful while still keeping a majority as residents.

Evert Fernandez, Chair

That would be as many as three from outside.

Paul Fritz, Vice Chair

I am okay with three from outside, but I would say that two of them have to be business owners, and only one is not a business owner. We do not have business owners at this point. We have a limit on not a business owner, not a resident, and only one. I am in favor of keeping that the way it is. I am fine with having two business owners. I would keep with one nonbusiness owner, nonresident (outside city limits). I like the radius idea; I do not have a strong opinion on Ives Park versus Main Street at Bodega Avenue. I do not know where exactly the center of town is. I think the radius is a bit arbitrary so where the center of the radius is just as arbitrary. The thing I like about the radius, versus the 95472-zip code is that it would pick up the area east of town. The zip code drops off very rapidly as you go east. Even though most of the population tends to be to the west, it is nice to include the area to the east because that will allow some people that would currently not be eligible.

Kathy Oetinger, Commissioner

I think it depends on whether we have one outside person, then do we want two other outside business owners? I think at that level the Council should decide.

Kari Svanstrom, Planning Director

I would strongly recommend that the ordinance always say "up to" this many members for the outside the city limit categories so Council has flexibility but could appoint all from within the City limits.

Evert Fernandez, Chair

I would like to have it say the majority must be city residents just to make that clear, because sometimes it gets a little confusing. Looking at notes from the Council's discussion, it looks like they were all in favor of that as well, so I would concur with them there.

Zac Douch, Commissioner

Yes, I would concur with that, too. I will also concur with Vice Chair Fritz's point that it could be up to three outside and that two of them must be business owners. That would satisfy coming at it from both those directions.

Luke Lindenbusch, Commissioner

I concur with that as well. Calling it a majority might make it easier for the Council moving forward. If the Commission does move down to five people, they will not have to go back and change the number.

Kari Svanstrom, Planning Director

In terms of the total number, at least from the initial comments, I have Commissioner Oetinger and Commissioner Lindenbusch as favoring seven members. Commissioner Douch was in favor of five members, other than potential subcommittee staffing and other tangent responsibilities. Vice Chair Fritz and Commissioner Kelley were in favor of five members. What is your position, Chair Fernandez?

Evert Fernandez, Chair

I would be in favor of five members as well.

Zac Douch, Commissioner

Commissioner Lindenbusch made a great point that if we reduce the number through attrition, it could be a long process and yes, it may be more about finding an appropriate opportunity, when perhaps a couple of commissioners are leaving to where that change may be ready to be made as an intentional act rather than simple attrition.

Zac Douch, Commissioner

Yes. Good point.

Linda Kelley, Planning Commissioner

I agree around the attrition issue. We do not want to get ourselves in a situation where it is an even number. I think the opportunity, when there's a couple of openings, it will take a while but that would be something we need to make sure does not happen. I am sure the Council does not want that to happen automatically either. If it is a majority and we go down to five members over time, I still think a majority is still too high in number so I cannot go with that. If we go down to five ultimately, I am sure we are going to be looking at this again because it could be a while, it might not, who knows? If we go down to five and we have three outside members, that is already going to be over the majority. At least the majority should have to be.

Evert Fernandez, Chair

Perhaps, if the Commission is supportive, if they do go down to five, the Council might want to send it back to the Commission to consider those things. Maybe an alternate would be needed with five members, I do not know. It may make sense to revisit the issue of how many people can be on who reside outside city limits if going down to five members.

Kari Svanstrom, Planning Director showed what a three-mile radius from Main Street would look like.

Evert Fernandez, Chair

Thank you for that. Was there consensus on the issue of a member moving out of the area? I thought I heard the majority say that their seat should be given up.

Kari Svanstrom, Planning Director

Yes, that is generally what I heard. There was one member who noted that, if it was the second part of their term, they may be able to stay on. All of this would be contingent on there actually being the position open. It sounds like your recommendation is to leave it more limited on the out-of-town residents.

What I am hearing from this additional discussion is, at this point, the number of members should go to seven, and that the Council should consider moving it to five, but to do so strategically so that there still are new members coming into the Commission so that it is not the existing members with no new members for a long period of time. That may be an opportunity they should be prepared for. If so, you could advise Council to come back to this group to see how that can be structured. In general, seven should be the goal now by eliminating the alternate position with Council determining whether or not to appoint the alternate or reopen the position which the alternate would be able to apply for. That matter could be one motion. The second component could be the outside city limit structure and what that radius or geography should look like.

Evert Fernandez, Chair

Moved to recommend that the number of members be reduced to seven by eliminating the alternate position. He further recommended that the Council consider moving to five through attrition, but to do so strategically so that there still are new members coming into the Commission so that it is not the existing members with no new members for a long period of time. Further, the Council would determine whether or not to appoint the alternate or reopen the position which the alternate would be able to apply for.

Vice Chair Fritz seconded the motion.

Chair Fernandez asked for discussion of the motion.

Kate Haug, Commissioner

I just want to clarify. If we eliminate the alternate position now, I will have to reapply for the Commission?

Paul Fritz, Vice Chair

Personally, I am in favor of you just moving into the seat, but it seems like most people wanted the Council to appoint someone. I am okay with Commissioner Haug sliding into that seat since she has already been appointed as an alternate.

Zac Douch, Commissioner

I get the feeling we are probably all okay with that, but I think the view is generally that the City Council should make that call. But yes, I think the record should reflect that we are all in favor of having Commissioner Haug become the full member.

Kari Svanstrom, Planning Director

Chair Fernandez, would you like to amend your motion that the Commission is recommending that the alternate move into the full member seat recognizing that the decision will ultimately be up to Council?

Chair Fernandez amended his motion as stated by Director Svanstrom.

Luke Lindenbusch, Commissioner

Can I offer a friendly amendment to remove the moving to five commissioners? I feel like that is a little bit of a separate issue.

Evert Fernandez, Chair

I would like to leave it as is.

Director Svanstrom read back the amended motion.

Vice Chair Fritz seconded the amended motion.

Linda Kelley, Planning Commissioner

I am not in support of our alternate moving in automatically, because I still think that if we are eliminating that position, even though there's experience, you can say the majority, but I am not comfortable with that, I think it should be thrown back in, the seat reopened, and see who applies.

Luke Lindenbusch, Commissioner

We are recommending that the Council reevaluate down the road a process for moving to five via attrition.

Evert Fernandez, Chair

Yes.

Luke Lindenbusch, Commissioner

Okay, that is fine. Thank you.

Evert Fernandez, Chair

I would like to leave the recommendation to have the alternate move into the full seat knowing that the Council will make the ultimate decision on that.

Kari Svanstrom, Planning Director

VOTE: Aye - Douch, Oetinger, Kelley, Lindenbusch, Haug, Fritz and Fernandez (UNANIMOUS)

Paul Fritz, Vice Chair

I am happy keeping that as the recommendation.

Evert Fernandez, Chair

Chair Fernandez asked to hear from the Commission on the number of members that can live outside city limits as well as what that radius or geographic area might be.

Paul Fritz, Vice Chair

If it is seven members, four must live in the city, one can live outside the city, and up to two can be business owners.

Evert Fernandez, Chair

They do not have to be, right?

Paul Fritz, Vice Chair

Yes, it would not be required. I can be all seven residents, but at least half have to be residents, up to two can be business owners that live outside city limits, and one can be a non-business owner that resides outside city limits.

Zac Douch, Commissioner

That sounded a lot like a motion, Vice Chair Fritz.

Paul Fritz, Vice Chair

Moved to recommend that the Commission consist of at least four residents, one can be a non-business owner that lives outside city limits, and up to two can be business owners that live outside city limits.

Commissioner Douch seconded the motion.

Evert Fernandez, Chair

What is your thought about why it should be up to two business owners versus two residents of the geographic area?

Paul Fritz, Vice Chair

I think it is about having more of an investment in the town. As I said earlier, I think I think it's pretty generous that we are allowing up to three people to be on our Planning Commission that do not live in Sebastopol.

Evert Fernandez, Chair

Yes, I am more supportive of having five that live in city limits, and allowing two that do not, but I do not think there was consensus on that.

Zac Douch, Commissioner

Maybe if the phrase is that up to three commissioners can be from the broader area, at least two of whom must be business owners.

Paul Fritz, Vice Chair

Yes. I like that.

Hearing no discussion, the Commission voted as follows:

VOTE:

 AYES: Chair Fernandez, Vice Chair Fritz, and Commissioners Lindenbusch, Douch, Haug, and Oetinger
NOES: Commissioner Kelley
ABSTAIN: None
ABSENT: None

The motion passed 6-1.

Chair Fernandez asked to hear from the Commission on the matter of radius/geographic area.

Luke Lindenbusch, Commissioner

I am prepared to make a motion.

Evert Fernandez, Chair

Okay, go ahead.

Luke Lindenbusch, Commissioner

Moved to recommend to the City Council that any qualified applicant to the Planning Commission defined as living outside of city limits may reside within the 95472-zip code, the 95444-zip code, and a three-mile radius defined around the point at North Main Street and Bodega Avenue.

Kari Svanstrom, Planning Director

To clarify, Commissioner Lindenbusch, is that an, 'and' or an, 'or'?

Luke Lindenbusch, Commissioner

It is an 'and'.

Commissioner Douch seconded the motion.

Chair Fernandez asked for discussion of the motion.

Evert Fernandez, Chair

That is for non-business owners, right?

Luke Lindenbusch, Commissioner

I would recommend that that would be the outside of city limits boundaries that could be used for the up to two business owners, or up to one nonbusiness owner outside city limits.

Evert Fernandez, Chair

The non-business owner is the one we are talking about because the business owner could live anywhere, right?

Luke Lindenbusch, Commissioner Right.

Paul Fritz, Vice Chair I thought the business owner would have to live in that zone too.

Zac Douch, Commissioner

I agree. I think it is both.

Luke Lindenbusch, Commissioner I will accept that as a friendly amendment.

Kari Svanstrom, Planning Director

I believe this would include some of the Graton area as that is the 95444-zip code area.

Evert Fernandez, Chair

Would it include all of that zip code, or just some of it?

Kari Svanstrom, Planning Director showed a zip code map on the screen Based on that, she stated that a three-mile radius would not include the town of Graton.

Evert Fernandez, Chair

Does the three-mile radius include any other zip codes other than the 95472, and 95444?

Paul Fritz, Vice Chair

Yes.

Kari Svanstrom, Planning Director

Yes. Portions of Santa Rosa would have a different zip code, I believe.

Paul Fritz, Vice Chair

The area by Hall Road and Occidental Road has a different zip code as well.

Evert Fernandez, Chair

The motion is three-miles and in the 95472, and 95444-zip codes, right?

Luke Lindenbusch, Commissioner

I am realizing it would be an 'or' to allow still the 95472-zip code, and 95444-zip code in its entirety, but with the radius, in addition, to allow for applicants living east of Sebastopol to be able to apply. It would make the overall area bigger than currently exists, but if Council wants to whittle that down to just the radius, they can.

Evert Fernandez, Chair

I would feel uncomfortable, even though they are in that three-mile radius, having members who have a city address other than Sebastopol, as a member of the Commission. That seems confusing to me.

Paul Fritz, Vice Chair

Even people within the 95472-zip code (Occidental, Monte Rio, Forestville, etc.) do not necessarily have a Sebastopol address either.

Linda Kelley, Planning Commissioner

When looking to the east of Sebastopol, does that three-mile radius take in any of the city of Santa Rosa, or is it the county?

Kari Svanstrom, Planning Director showed a city limits map on screen.

Linda Kelley, Planning Commissioner

Seems like what we are doing now is shifting West County. Expanding the radius to the east is maybe not what we really intended to do? I still think it could be Sebastopol zip codes, not Santa Rosa's zip codes. Maybe using the three-mile radius within our zip codes would help clean it up?

Luke Lindenbusch, Commissioner

I want to accept that as an amendment to my motion.

Kari Svanstrom, Planning Director

The motion that has been made is the 95472-zip code, the 95444-zip code, or a threemile radius centered on Main Street and Bodega Avenue.

Paul Fritz, Vice Chair

If you move the center to Ives Park, you might eliminate the Santa Rosa city limits.

Kathy Oetinger, Commissioner

It is really Parkside School, rather than Ives Park.

Paul Fritz, Vice Chair

Could be the intersection of Washington and Bodega Avenue?

Luke Lindenbusch, Commissioner

I suggested that intersection in part because, when we are dividing up evacuation routes for town, we have the quadrants clearly defined. When I measured it, it was exactly three miles to the city of Santa Rosa, but maybe, if anybody wants to make an amendment that the radius not include any parcels within another municipal jurisdiction? That could disqualify anyone who might be in some of those kinds of stray city of Santa Rosa parcels because the radius will include the city of Santa Rosa. There are wastewater treatment plants along Highway 12 that are city of Santa Rosa, but no one lives in them. Functionally, there is no risk of anyone joining the Planning Commission from those parcels.

Zac Douch, Commissioner

It sounded like you amended your own motion.

Luke Lindenbusch, Commissioner

Okay, I will do that.

Evert Fernandez, Chair

Can you restate your amended motion, please?

Luke Lindenbusch, Commissioner

Moved to recommend to the City Council that any qualified applicant to the Planning Commission, for those in the out of city limits category, reside within the 95472-zip code, or the 95444-zip code, or within a three-mile radius of the point defined at North Main Street and Bodega Avenue providing that said applicants do not reside within any other municipal jurisdiction, namely the city of Santa Rosa. Is there a second?

Commissioner Douch seconded the amended motion.

Paul Fritz, Vice Chair

I am still not totally in line with the whole 95472-zip code, am I the only one not in favor of that, are there other concerns?

Evert Fernandez, Chair

What do you mean by that?

Paul Fritz, Vice Chair

I do not think we should include the whole 95472-zip code, personally, so I would vote against that motion.

Evert Fernandez, Chair

You would prefer a radius?

Paul Fritz, Vice Chair

Yes, I would prefer a radius, or some other way to define it. We could draw our own boundary as well. It seems like the radius would be easier. I do not think it should be such an expansive area, personally.

Linda Kelley, Planning Commissioner

It seems like, what we are trying to do by opening it up to non-residents, is partly in recognizing that they use Sebastopol as a sort of hub. I do not believe that Santa Rosa, or the area to the east of us uses us as their hub. They mostly go to Santa Rosa. I want to appreciate the folks that have their kids in our schools, that shop in our stores, that own businesses. I like the three-mile radius within our zip codes, 95472, and 95444.

Evert Fernandez, Chair

Yes, I feel similar to that as well.

Kathy Oetinger, Commissioner

I do also.

Paul Fritz, Vice Chair

It sounds like we have no consensus.

Kari Svanstrom, Planning Director

Because there is a motion that has been seconded, there needs to be a vote on that. Then, if that fails, another motion can be made.

The Commission voted on the motion which was made by Commissioner Lindenbusch and seconded by Commissioner Douch as follows:

VOTE:

 AYES: Commissioners Lindenbusch and Douch
NOES: Chair Fernandez, Vice Chair Fritz, and Commissioners Kelley, Haug, and Oetinger
ABSTAIN: None
ABSENT: None

The motion failed.

Paul Fritz, Vice Chair

It seems to that me we do not really have a consensus for this item at all. I am okay with going to the east, but I am not okay with the whole zip code. Commissioner Douch is okay with the whole zip code and go to the east, Commissioner Lindenbusch is okay with the whole zip code and going to the east. If the other four members are okay with a three-mile radius in the 95472-zip code, that could work.

Kathy Oetinger, Commissioner

My feeling is, by pulling in the 95472-zip code, we are pulling it away from communities like Forestville and Occidental. Maybe Graton is in our community, but it is outside the three-mile radius. We are pulling it into the people who think they live in Sebastopol, but they live just outside of the city. The problem with a three-mile radius, I think pulling it back to two and a half, a little bit more away from Santa Rosa in case there are people, although there really are not that may people over there. If you are traveling two and a half miles from the center of town, you probably think you live in Sebastopol, and I think that is a better area to consider. I suppose you could say within the two and a half mile or

even a three-mile radius, as long as you are in the 95472-zip code. I think that works for me, but I think that maybe even three miles is too far because you are getting people who are not really in the city, in the community, they are much more rural. I think there are so many people just outside the city that they would feel included and be considered in the community. Now, I suppose if you have a business owner, and they do not live there, they may want to live all the way out in Occidental, so maybe that is the reason for it?

Kate Haug, Commissioner

I concur. I think there is two separate issues. One is, if we are opening it up to nonresidents that are business owners, they may very well live beyond the three-mile radius. That poses a double jeopardy type of situation where someone has to own a business, and then also live within that radius. I think that is a little bit more complicated in terms of our trying to broaden the voices that are heard. The other issue is, how far east do we want to go? Maybe that is why they originally settled on using the zip code as the determinant for outside positions, because it leaves a lot of leeway for business owners in terms of where they live in relation to the actual city limits.

Zac Douch, Commissioner

That is what I was going to say.

Kari Svanstrom, Planning Director

I am trying to look at different ways of parsing geography. I will suggest one, which you can completely throw away if you would like, looking at the catchment area for schools that is another possible geography (discussed the map on screen). The Sebastopol Union area, as you can see, does go over to the east, it is a very rural area, there is not a lot of population there. If you wanted to do it based on school district identification, it is not quite a radius, but it is not drawing our own boundaries exactly, either.

Kathy Oetinger, Commissioner

You would include Twin Hills and Gravenstein Union as well?

Kari Svanstrom, Planning Director

If I were to suggest it, I would probably say Sebastopol Union, Gravenstein, and Twin Hills. I do not know how far that goes down. The Commission may want to think about this kind of geography. I have included the Zoning Map for Sebastopol so you can see the scale.

Paul Fritz, Vice Chair

I do not know that there is a lot of consensus on this. Maybe that gets reported back to Council for them to decide?

Kari Svanstrom, Planning Director

I can certainly report that there was no clear consensus. You have the majority of your specifications for that which you were in consensus on, but in terms of geography, I can describe that in the staff report. There are a number of ways it can be parsed, but there was not a clear consensus.

Zac Douch, Commissioner

Yes, and I think that is the point. There are a number of ways and I think the school districts in actually a really interesting way of looking at it, but I think it needs a little more focus. If I could spend a bit more time on it, I might be able to gain a stronger sense of an opinion. I am really going on my feeling about what should or should not be included.

Evert Fernandez, Chair

Yes. You can just discuss some of the issues that we have discussed with regards to the city limits and all of that. I would be okay with that. Is everyone else?

Paul Fritz, Vice Chair

I would not be opposed to, if anyone else is interested, drawing our own boundary either using the three-mile radius idea, or the school district idea, or a line around certain roads to specify a boundary. I do not think we have the time or ability to that kind of thing right now.

Evert Fernandez, Chair

I think we have given them enough information about our concerns for them to look at that.

Kari Svanstrom, Planning Director

Noted that, given the changes being recommended, if it was just eliminating the alternate, that doesn't require a change to the ordinance to enact. However, codifying elimination of the alternate would be a change to the ordinance. Requiring the majority of residents would also be a change to the ordinance. The additional outside city limit specifications would take an ordinance change as well. That ordinance language would come back to you for review and recommendation to Council. We will have a Planning Commission liaison at the meeting when this is presented to Council, we can present that there is some interest in modifying the boundaries, that there are a number of different ways to do it, although there was not a consensus. You can move forward based on any additional direction from Council. If the direction from City Council, for instance, is they want a three-mile radius, it is easy. If they say, we would like the Commission to look at drawing our own boundary, that is something that we can come back to the Commission with at the same time, or before, bringing the ordinance language forward. It does not need to be done all in one night. You can ask Council to provide some additional direction based on your comments tonight, and it can come back to the Commission.

Evert Fernandez, Chair

Was that all the items?

Kari Svanstrom, Planning Director

That was, thank you. That was very complex, and you handled it well, Chair Fernandez. Thank you for your facilitation of that.

Evert Fernandez, Chair

Thank you for your patience and for some good deliberation.

7. SUBCOMMITTEE UPDATES

Luke Lindenbusch, Commissioner

The Climate Action Committee is well underway. There had been some concern, committee members around the region told me to get into working groups as quickly as you can, we spent a really long time not getting into working groups. We are doing our working group assignments tomorrow, so we are really ahead of the curve from other cities, from everything I have heard, in terms of just getting everyone into the area that they are passionate about and making sure that there's enough direction on a committee level to make it work, but then just letting them run with that. We really want to make sure that it is a process that has a lot of community engagement. With that, I will just

note that tomorrow we are having another, of many conversations to continue, about the revision to the Climate Action Plan for the City of Sebastopol. That will be taking up most of our conversation tomorrow in our meeting at 3:30 p.m. That is pretty much it for me. Again, if anyone has any questions about the Climate Action Committee, or wants to attend our meetings, you're welcome to, otherwise I am happy to talk about it. I have also been in the steering committee, the co-chair group, there are two people who are really excited about facilitating, being on board, and had not been on a public committee before. It has been good to get all of our different skill sets together and to really make it happen. There is a lot of energy, there is a lot of enthusiasm, there is a lot of expertise. I think this is really going to be a generated effort for the city.

Evert Fernandez, Chair

The details of the meeting are on the City's website, right?

Luke Lindenbusch, Commissioner

Yes, we are a Brown Act board, all of our meetings are noticed.

Kari Svanstrom, Planning Director

The other subcommittee update is, we did not appoint a representative for the Zero Waste Subcommittee at our last meeting since we were missing a few folks. I apologize, I realized that I meant to send out the information to those who were missing, but I did not. I will go over it really quickly. We did have Sunny Galbraith here, who is the chair of that committee. The meeting time for that group is the first Monday of the month from 3:30 p.m. to 5:00 p.m. A lot of what they have been working on is restaurant wastewater conservation, food recovery, they put together the polystyrene ordinance, and the zero waste guidelines for events in the city, and anything that utilizes City parks, which are obviously on hold for now. That policy is already in place. They are likely to pick up how to deal with a lot of the COVID PPE and other things that COVID has necessitated as they start meeting again. I believe Commissioner Oetinger had expressed a willingness to be on the committee, but we did not know if there were others who would also be potentially interested as well. The direction was to bring it back at this meeting.

Kathy Oetinger, Commissioner

I have a conflict with their meeting time. Not now, but if the world ever gets back to where it was, I already had things that are conflicting at that time, so I do not want to add another.

Evert Fernandez, Chair

There is a specific position for a Planning Commissioner, right?

Kari Svanstrom, Planning Director

Yes, the Council has requested that a Commissioner be a liaison to that group.

Kate Haug, Commissioner

I could do it temporarily, who knows when life will get back, it could be a while. Unless someone else wants to do it, I am willing to do it, for now.

Evert Fernandez, Chair

Yes. Then, if it changes for you, at least you will have a better understanding of what it is about and can report back and maybe by that time somebody would have an interest to continue.

Paul Fritz, Vice Chair

I was on the Council housing subcommittee, do they ever do anything, because I have never heard anything.

Kari Svanstrom, Planning Director

I did look into that. I believe we had one meeting and it was about the Sebastopol Inn and getting ready for some meetings with the County on that. I did talk with our City Clerk and the Commission did appoint Vice Chair Fritz as the liaison, but it is not an official subcommittee position. I am going to raise that with the housing subcommittee at the next meeting that I have with them. It was on my agenda when we met about getting ready for Sebastopol Inn work, but we ran out of time and did not get to that. That currently does not have a Planning Commissioner assigned to it, it is just the two Council members, but I do have that on my pending list to discuss with them the next time.

Paul Fritz, Vice Chair

Okay. I believe I was appointed to the design guideline subcommittee as well.

Kari Svanstrom, Planning Director

Yes. That is one of those projects that unfortunately got put aside with COVID due to staffing resources. We are looking to pick that up this spring and to get that going. You will probably hear something about setting up a meeting for that group in the next month, or so.

Paul Fritz, Vice Chair

Okay, thanks.

Kari Svanstrom, Planning Director

On that note, I do have the liaison list for 2021 filled out, I will send that out tomorrow so that you can see that. I believe we had it scheduled through March, but this schedules it through the rest of the year and into next March.

Evert Fernandez, Chair

Who would be the liaison for the next for the upcoming council meeting next week?

Kari Svanstrom, Planning Director

I can talk about that in my Director's report.

Evert Fernandez, Chair

The Ives Park subcommittee is moving forward and doing a lot of good stuff.

Kathy Oetinger, Commissioner

I think we will have more to report at the next meeting.

8. PLANNING DIRECTOR'S REPORT

Director Svanstrom provided the following updates to the Commission:

- At the last City Council meeting:
 - Mid-year budget review
 - RHNA update (which included some changes from when this item was presented to the Commission)
- Upcoming items for City Council:
 - On March 2, the Benedetti Car Wash hearing continuation, and a presentation on Climate Safe California.

- On March 16, a public hearing on our development impact fees to start the adoption process, the Commission's recommendations on Planning Commission Composition will likely be on this agenda as well.
- We will need the Planning Commission liaison in attendance for both of those.
- The March liaison is Commissioner Kelley with Commissioner Haug as the alternate if Commissioner Kelley is not available.
- I believe Chair Fernandez was the liaison for the Benedetti Car Wash item when it first went before Council so it may be appropriate for him to attend as the liaison for that item on March 2.
- There is a special City Council meeting, a study session to review and discuss the CoMission (our community vitality consultant) work that has been going on, on March 10 from 8:30 a.m. to 10, or 10:30 a.m.
- We have a new Police Chief; his name is Kevin Kilgore, and he will start next Monday.

Evert Fernandez, Chair

Chief Kilgore will be introduced at the next Council meeting.

Kari Svanstrom, Planning Director

Yes, they will introduce him at the March 2 Council meeting.

Linda Kelley, Planning Commissioner

Unfortunately, my work schedule does not let me attend a Council meeting on Tuesday's. I am hoping my alternate will be able to stand in, or how else that can be handled?

Evert Fernandez, Chair

I can attend the March 2 hearing since I was the liaison for the Benedetti Car Wash when it first went before Council.

Kate Haug, Commissioner

I can be available for one, or both of those meetings. If, for consistency's sake, Chair Fernandez wants to attend the meeting on March 2, since he was the liaison for the initial hearing, that is fine, but I am available.

Kari Svanstrom, Planning Director

In this case, because Council did have pretty lengthy discussions, it may be helpful to have continuity with Chair Fernandez serving as the liaison for the March 2 meeting.

Evert Fernandez, Chair

Okay. Of course, any commissioners are welcome to attend the meeting and make comments as well. I will be the liaison for the March 2, and then Commissioner Haug can be the liaison on the 16th.

Director Svanstrom provided an update on upcoming items for the Commission and commented that she would send an email with information on upcoming presenters that have been scheduled to come before the Commission.

Evert Fernandez, Chair

Thank you to Commissioner Haug for setting up those presentations for us, we appreciate it.

There were no questions for Director Svanstrom.

9. ADJOURNMENT: Chair Fernandez adjourned the meeting at 9:53 p.m. The next regularly scheduled Planning Commission meeting will take place on Tuesday, March 09, 2021 at 7:00 p.m.

Respectfully Submitted By:

Kari Svanstrom Planning Director